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LICENSEE:

The inspection was an examination of the activities conducted under your license as they relate to radiation safety and to compliance with the Nuclear
Regulatory Commission (NRC) rules and regulations and the conditions of your license. The inspection consisted of selective examinations of
procedures and representative records, interviews with peraonnel, and observations by the Inspector. The Inspection findings are as follows:

L_l

1.

Based on the Inspection findings, no violations were identified.

[ ] 2.

Previous vlolatlon(s) cloaed.

L!

The vlolatlons(s), specifically described to you by the inspector as non-cited violations, are not being cited because they were self-Identified,
non-repetitive, and corrective action was or Is being taken, and the remaining criteria In the NRC Enforcement Polley, to exercise
discretion, were satisfied.

3.

Non-cited violatlon(s) were discussed Involving the following requirement(s):

During this inspection, certain of your activities, as described below and/or attached, were In violation of NRC requirements and are being
cited in accordance with NRC Enforcement Policy. This fonn Is a NOTICE OF VIOLATION, which may be subject to posting in accordance
with 10CFR 19.11.
(Vlolatlons and Corrective Actions)

Title 10 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 71.S(a) requires that a licensee who transports licensed
material outside of the site of usage, as specified in the NRC license, or where transport is on public highways,
or who delivers licensed material to a carrier for transport, comply with the applicable requirements of the
regulations appropriate to the mode of transport of the Department of Transportation (DOT) in 49 CFR Parts
107, 171-180, and 390-397. (Continued on Part 2)

Statement of Corrective Actions
I hereby state that, within 30 days, the actions described by me to the Inspector wlll be taken to correct the violations ld&ntlfled. This statement of
corrective actions Is made in accordance with the requirements of 10 CFR 2.201 (corrective steps already taken, corrective steps which will be taken,
date when full compliance will be achieved). I understand that no further written response to NRC wlll be required, unless speclflcally requested.
PRINTED NAME

TITLE

~SIGNATURE

DATE

,

NRC INSPECTOR

Robert G. Gattone, Jr

BRANCH CHIEF

Aaron T. McCraw
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(Continued)

(Continued from Part 1)
49 CFR 172.704(c) requires that a new hazmat employee, or a hazmat employee who changes job functions may
perform those functions prior to the completion of training provided the employee performs those functions under the
direct supervision of a properly trained and knowledgeable hazmat employee; and the training is completed within 90
days after employment or a change in job function. In addition, a hazmat employee shall receive the training required by
this subpart at least once every three years.
Contrary to the above, the licensee did not provide training for its hazmat employees which satisfied the requirements in
Subpart H to 49 CFR Part 172. For example, a hazmat employee was approved as an authorized user (AU) by the
licensee on April 4, 2016, and the licensee did not provide hazmat training for the AU until May 2, 2018, a period of
greater than 90 days after employment. Another hazmat employee was approved as an AU on June I 0, 2013, and the
licensee provided initial hazmat training to the AU on June 10, 2013, but the licensee did not provide recurrent hazmat
training for the individual until July 10, 2017, a period of greater than 3 years.
This is a Severity Level IV violation (Section 6.8).
The root cause of the violation was oversight. As corrective action to prevent a similar violation, the licensee committed
to revise its radiation protection program audit template to add actions to ensure that AUs receive recurrent hazmat
training every 3 years. In addition, the licensee committed to update its procedures for hew hires to ensure that hazmat
employees complete their initial hazmat training within 90 days after employment.
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Field Office Inspection
Temporary Job Site Inspection
---------------------

PROGRAM SCOPE

Nowak & Fraus, PLLC is authorized under NRC Materials License No. 21-26122-01 to use licensed material for
measuring physical properties of materials with four Troxler Model 3430 gauges containing cesium-137 and
americium-241 (Serial Nos. 67642, 32398, 34142, and 25148). The gauges were used daily in the United States in areas
ofNRC jurisdiction. The licensee had five authorized users (AUs). The nearest temporary jobsite during the onsite
inspection was too far away; therefore, the inspector did not conduct the inspection at a temporary jobsite.
Performance Observations
The inspector: (I) observed how the licensee secured gauges at its facility and noted that there were two independent
physical controls that formed tangible barriers to secure portable gauges from unauthorized removal, whenever portable
gauges were not under the control and constant surveillance of the licensee; (2) noted that the licensee did not open
sources or detach source rods from portable gauges; (3) noted that the licensee transferred portable gauges to an
authorized firm for repair and maintenance; (4) observed an AU demonstrate how he had used a gauge at a temporary
jobsite, and noted that the AU used a utilization log, wore his dosimeter badge, safely used the portable gauge including
use of a template to align the gauge for pushing the source rod into the ground, and taking action to prevent the gauge
from being damaged at the temporary jobsite; (5) observed that the cesium-137 source rod was padlocked in the shielded
position; (6) observed that the gauge case was marked, labeled and it was in good condition; (7) noted that there were no
incidents involving licensed material since the last inspection (i.e., no damaged gauges, loss of gauges, theft, flood, fire,
or leaking sources); (8) verified that the licensee had an agreement with McDowell Associates such that, if the licensee
needs to have a radiation survey, McDowell Associates' RSO would bring a survey instrument to the scene and conduct
ambient exposure rate surveys on behalf of the licensee; (9) reviewed dosimeter badge results for the highest annual
whole body dose for 2013 through 3/4/18, and the highest whole body dose was 86 millirem; (10) reviewed selected
physical inventory records that were done every 6 months and there were no concerns; and (11) noted that the licensee
conducted radiation protection program audits as required by 20.1101 (c ).
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